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Discrimination – Rehabilitation Act Information 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

Title:    Laws and Regulations  

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

Title V of the Rehabilitation Act 1973 sets forth several important assurances and 

protections pertaining to the rights of people with disabilities. This Act applies to the 

Federal government as an employer and in the administration of its conducted 

programs, federal contractors, and entities receiving federal funds. The protections 

include:  

Section 501: Employment of Persons with Disabilities 

Requires federal agencies to develop and implement annual affirmative action plans for 

the hiring, placement, and advancement of "handicapped" persons and submit to the 

EEOC. This Section was modified by the Vietnam Era Readjustment Assistance Act of 

1974 to include separate actions for disabled veterans. Section 501(a), as amended, which 

establishes an Interagency Committee on Employment of People with Disabilities. 

Section 501(b), as amended, which requires affirmative action in Federal employment of 

persons with disabilities. 

Section 502: Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (Access 

Board) 

Provides for the removal of barriers to create more accessible infrastructures. 

Section 503: Employment Under Federal Contracts 

Requires federal contractors who receive a government contract of $10,000 or more 

include affirmative action efforts for employment of people with disabilities. 
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Section 504: Nondiscrimination Under federal grants and 

programs 

Prohibits discrimination of qualified persons with disabilities in federally 

funded and conducted programs, not only in employment but in the 

provision of services to include education, health services, loans, grants, 

etc.  

Section 505: Remedies and Attorney's Fees 

Allows persons filing a complaint of discrimination in federal employment on the basis 

of disability the same remedies, procedures and rights as provided under Title VII of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964. These remedies include: 

¶ administrative awards of back pay and other equitable relief to employees as well as applicants. 
¶ compensatory damages  
¶ the right to file suit in federal court once the complainant has met the prerequisites set forth in 

29 CPR 1614. 
¶ the award of attorney's fees or costs incurred in the processing of the complaint or in the 

prosecution of a successful lawsuit. 

Section 506: Responsibilities of the Secretary of Education 

Established that the Secretary of Education may provide, directly or contractually, 

technical assistance to rehabilitation facilities or to any public or non-profit organization 

for the purpose of assisting in the removal of architectural, transportation, or 

communication barriers. 

The Secretary may provide, directly or contractually, financial assistance to any public or 

non-profit organization which would be used for removing architectural, transportation or 

communication barriers.  

Section 507: Interagency Disability Coordinating Council 

Established the Interagency Disability Coordinating Council which is responsible for 

coordinating implementation of the Title V of the Rehabilitation Act and monitor and 

coordinate all effort of federal agencies concerning the rights of people with disabilities. 

This includes the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 
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Section 508: Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility 

Electronic and information technology that is accessible to people with disabilities 

provides greater access opportunities for all. Section 508 was established to prohibit 

barriers in information technology and present new opportunities and promises for people 

with disabilities. For complete information and resources, please access the Section 508 

website. 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The ADA prohibits discrimination in employment in state and local programs and 

services. This law does not apply to the Executive Branch of the federal government. 

However, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act establishes similar requirements in 

federally conducted programs and activities. In addition, ADA standards for 

nondiscrimination in employment apply to federal employment under Section 501 of the 

Rehabilitation Act. The regulations and guidance under the ADA are therefore helpful to 

federal agencies seeking to comply with Sections 501 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.  

Telecommunications Act of 1996 

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 highlights the most significant opportunity for the 

advancement of people with disabilities since the passage of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) in 1990. These provisions require manufacturers of 

telecommunications equipment and providers of telecommunications services to ensure 

that such equipment and services are accessible to persons with disabilities, if readily 

achievable. Congress recognized that, although we are moving into the information age 

with increasing dependence on telecommunications tools, people with disabilities remain 

unable to access many products and services that are vital to full participation in our 

society. The purpose of sections 255 and 251(a)(2) of the Act is to amend this situation 

by bringing the benefits of the telecommunications revolution to all Americans, including 

those who face accessibility barriers to telecommunications products and services. The 

rules adopted by this Act will have an historic effect on the ability of Americans with 

disabilities to access and utilize telecommunications technologies and services.  

1973 Rehabilitation Act, 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act  

Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act, Pub. L. No. 93-112, 87 Stat. 394 (Sept. 26, 

1973), codified at 29 U.S.C. § 701 et seq., is American legislation that guarantees certain 

rights to people with disabilities. Section 504 is widely recognized as the first civil-rights 

statute for persons with disabilities. It took effect in May 1977. Because it was 

successfully implemented over the next several years, it helped to pave the way for the 

http://www.section508.gov/
http://www.section508.gov/
http://www.section508.gov/
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rehabilitation_Act_of_1973
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rehabilitation_Act_of_1973
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Title_29_of_the_United_States_Code
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/29/701.html
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Legislation
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Disabilities
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Virginians with Disabilities Act in 1985 and the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act. 

The 30th anniversary of the issuance of final regulations carrying out Section 504 was 

April 28, 2007. 

Section 504 states (in part): 

No otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States, as defined in 

section 705(20) of this title, shall, solely by reason of her or his disability, be excluded 

from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination 

under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance or under any 

program or activity conducted by any Executive agency or by the United States Postal 

Service. 

Codified as 29 U.S.C. 794. 

According to this law, Individuals with Disabilities are: 

"persons with a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits one or more 

major life activities." 

where 

"Major life activities include caring for one's self, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, 

breathing, working, performing manual tasks, and learning."
[1]

 

However, "For purposes of employment", Qualified Individuals with Disabilities must 

also meet "normal and essential eligibility requirements", such that: 

"For purposes of employment, Qualified Individuals with Disabilities are persons who, 

with Reasonable Accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the job for 

which they have applied or have been hired to perform. " 

where 

"Reasonable Accommodation means an employer is required to take reasonable steps to 

accommodate your disability unless it would cause the employer undue hardship."
[1]

 

That is, Qualified Individuals with Disabilities must be able to perform the job duties 

associated with the job they will hired for. The USA Department of Labor also indicates 

that "Small Providers" do not have to make "significant structural alterations to their 

existing facilities" to accommodate the individual with the disability.
[2]

 

"The ADA (Americans With Disabilities Act) was passed in 1990, and seems to pick up 

where the Rehabilitation Act left off. Borrowing from the §504 definition of disabled 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Americans_with_Disabilities_Act
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States_Postal_Service
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States_Postal_Service
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States_Postal_Service
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode29/usc_sec_29_00000794----000-.html
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_note-USA_Dept_of_Health.26Human_Services-0
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_note-USA_Dept_of_Health.26Human_Services-0
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_note-USA_Dept_of_Labor-1
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person, and using the familiar three-pronged approach to eligibility (has a physical or 

mental impairment, a record of an impairment, or is regarded as having an 

impairment), the ADA applied those standards to most private sector businesses, and 

sought to eliminate barriers to disabled access in buildings, transportation, and 

communication. To a large degree, the passage of the ADA supplants the employment 

provisions of §504, reinforces the accessibility requirements of §504 with more specific 

regulations".
[3]

 

 

The broad reach of Section 504 is implied in the statutory language above. Section 504 

covers "any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance". Federal funds 

underwrite airports  all over the country - it is no accident that airports were among the 

first American facilities to become fully accessible. Federal funds also flow to some 

3,000 colleges and universities nationwide, typically in the form of grants and 

cooperative agreements, but also through financial assistance for students. Colleges, 

universities, and community colleges became accessible in the late 1970s and early to 

mid 1980s because of Section 504. Public libraries  in many thousands of communities 

receive federal financial assistance, directly or indirectly. These, too, became accessible 

within just a few years of the implementation of section 504. 

History 

Section 504 was the last sentence in the 1973 Act. However, more than three years later, 

no implementing rules had been issued. That spurred the American Coalition of Citizens 

with Disabilities to make "Sign 504" its #1 priority and to launch a nationwide 

demonstration led by Frank Bowe, then ACCD's head, in March and April 1977. The 

regulations were finally issued in late April 1977. Over the next several years, Section 

504 was somewhat controversial because it afforded people with disabilities many rights 

similar to those for other minority groups in the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Throughout the 

Reagan administration, efforts were made to weaken Section 504. Not only did those fail, 

but the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 extended Section 504 to much of the 

private sector (notably private employers, stores, hotels, and restaurants), while 

specifically stating that it made no amendments, weakening or otherwise, to Section 504. 

¶ After School and Summer Programs - Clayton (MO) Sch. Dist., 16 EHLR 766 (OCR, March 16, 
1990); Conejo Valley (CA) Unified Sch. Dist., 23 IDELR 448 (OCR, June 28, 1995); 

¶ Graduation - Aldine (TX) Indep. Sch. Dist., 16 EHLR 1411 (OCR, July 12, 1990); and 
¶ Late Bus Transportation - Carmel Cent. (NY) Sch. Dist., 20 IDELR 1177 (OCR, September 30, 

1993). 

Legal Rights under Section 504 

Although not in the text of the statute, courts have held that individuals have a private 

right of action under Section 504. While punitive damages are not available, 

Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_note-David_M._Richards-2
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/American_Coalition_of_Citizens_with_Disabilities
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/American_Coalition_of_Citizens_with_Disabilities
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/American_Coalition_of_Citizens_with_Disabilities
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Frank_Bowe
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Civil_Rights_Act_of_1964
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Reagan_administration
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Americans_with_Disabilities_Act_of_1990
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compensatory damages are available to plaintiffs. See Barnes v. Gorman, 536 U.S. 181, 

185 (2002). Arguably, these rights extend to include emotional distress damages. See 

Section 504 Brief, arguing that emotional distress damages are available under Section 

504. 

 

References 

¶ Switzer, Jacqueline Vaughn. Disabled Rights: American Disability Policy and the Fight for 
Equality. Georgetown University Press, 2003. 

¶ h/w {ŜƴƛƻǊ {ǘŀŦŦ aŜƳƻǊŀƴŘŀΣ άDǳƛŘŀƴŎŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ {ŜŎǘƛƻƴ рлп to Noneducational 
tǊƻƎǊŀƳǎ ƻŦ wŜŎƛǇƛŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ CŜŘŜǊŀƭ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ !ǎǎƛǎǘŀƴŎŜΣέ WŀƴǳŀǊȅ оΣ мффлΦ 

¶ Lynch, William, "The Application of Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act to the Internet: 
Poor E-Planning Prevents Poor E-Performance," 12 CommLaw Conspectus: Journal of 
Communications Law and Policy 245 (2004). 

1. ^ a b USA Dept of Health&Human Services - Section 304 discussion 
2. ^ a b USA Dept of Labor - Section 304 discussion 
3. ^ a b David M. Richards, Attorney at Law - Richards Lindsay & Martin, L.LP. 

4. ^ Title 34τEducation § 300.8 "Child with a disability means a child . . . having mental 
retardation, a hearing impairment (including deafness), a speech or language impairment, a 
visual impairment (including blindness), a serious emotional disturbance (referred to in this part 
ŀǎ ΨΨŜƳƻǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŘƛǎǘǳǊōŀƴŎŜΩΩύΣ ŀƴ ƻǊǘƘƻǇŜŘƛŎ ƛƳǇŀƛǊƳŜƴǘΣ ŀǳǘƛǎƳΣ ǘǊŀǳƳŀǘƛŎ ōǊŀƛƴ ƛƴƧǳǊȅΣ ŀƴ ƻǘƘŜǊ 
health impairment, a specific learning disability, deaf-blindness, or multiple disabilities, and who, 
by reason thereof, needs special education and related services." 

 

 

1973 Rehabilitation Act, 

Sec. 15b.18 Existing facilities. 

(a) Program accessibility. A recipient shall operate each assisted program or activity so that 

the program or activity, when viewed in its entirety, is readily accessible to and usable by 

qualified handicapped persons. This paragraph does not necessarily require a recipient to make 

each of its existing facilities or every part of an existing facility accessible to and usable by 

qualified handicapped persons. 

http://www.napas.org/amicus/briefs/AmBriefSection504.pdf
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_ref-USA_Dept_of_Health.26Human_Services_0-0
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_ref-USA_Dept_of_Health.26Human_Services_0-1
http://www.dhhs.gov/ocr/504.html
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_ref-USA_Dept_of_Labor_1-0
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_ref-USA_Dept_of_Labor_1-1
http://www.dol.gov/oasam/regs/statutes/sec504.htm
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_ref-David_M._Richards_2-0
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_ref-David_M._Richards_2-1
http://www.504idea.org/504overview.html#I
Section_504_of_the_Rehabilitation_Act.htm#cite_ref-34_CFR_.C2.A7_300.8_3-0
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rehabilitation_Act_of_1973
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(b) Method. A recipient may comply with the requirements of paragraph (a) of this section 

through such means as redesign of equipment, reassignment of classes or other services to 

accessible buildings, assignment of aides to beneficiaries, home visits, delivery of services at 

alternate accessible sites, alteration of exiting facilities and construction of new facilities in 

conformance with the requirements of Sec. 15b.19, or any other method that results in making 

its program or activity accessible to qualified handicapped persons. A recipient is not required 

to make structural changes in existing facilities where other methods are effective in achieving 

compliance with paragraph (a) of this section. In choosing among available methods for 

meeting the requirement of paragraph (a) of this section, a recipient shall give priority to 

those methods that offer programs and activities to qualified handicapped persons in the most 

intergrated setting appropriate to obtain the full benefits of the program. 

 (c) Small providers. If a recipient with fewer than fifteen employees finds, after consultation 

with a handicapped person seeking its services, that there is no method of complying with 

paragraph (a) of this section other than by making a significant alteration in its existing facilities, 

the recipient may, as an alternative, refer the handicapped person to other providers of those 

services that are accessible at no additional cost to handicapped persons. 

(d) Application for modification of requirements. Recipients that determine after a self-

evaluation conducted according to the requirements of Sec. 15b.8(c), that program 

accessibility can only be accomplished through substantial modifications which would result in 

a fundamental alteration in the nature of the program, may apply to the Secretary for a 

modification of the requirements of this section. 

(e) Historic preservation programs. Application for waiver of program accessibility requirements. 

(1) In the case of historic preservation programs, program accessibility means that, when viewed 

in its entirety, a program is readily accessible to and usable by handicapped persons. This 

paragraph does not necessarily require a recipient to make each of its existing historic 

properties or every part of an historic property accessible to and usable by handicapped 

persons. Methods of achieving program accessibility include: (i) Making physical alterations 

which enable handicapped persons to have access to otherwise inaccessible areas or features of 

historic properties; (ii) Using audio-visual materials and devices to depict otherwise inaccessible 

areas or features of historic properties; (iii) Assigning persons to guide handicapped persons into 

or through otherwise inaccessible portions of historic properties; (iv) Adopting other innovative 

methods to achieve program accessibility. Because the primary benefit of an historic 

preservation program is the experience of the historic property itself, in taking steps to achieve 

program accessibility, recipients shall give priority to those means which make the historic 

property, or portions thereof physicially accessible to handicapped individuals. (2) Where 

program accessibility cannot be achieved without causing a substantial impairment of significant 

historic features, the Secretary may grant a waiver of the program accessibility requirement. In 
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determining whether program accessibility can be achieved without causing a substantial 

impairment, the Secretary shall consider the following factors: (i) Scale of property, reflecting its 

ability to absorb alterations; (ii) Use of the property, whether primarily for public or private 

purpose; (iii) Importance of the historic features of the property to the conduct of the program; 

and, (iv) Cost of alterations in comparison to the increase in accessibility. 

 

The Secretary shall periodically review any waiver granted under this section and may withdraw 

it if technological advances or other changes so warrant. (3) Where the property is federally 

owned or where Federal funds may be used for alterations, the comments of the Advisory 

Council on Historic Preservation shall be obtained when required by section 106 of the National 

Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470), and 36 CFR part 800, prior to 

effectuation of structural alterations. 

(f) Time period. A recipient shall comply with the requirements of paragraph (a) of this section 

within sixty days of the effective date of this part except that where structural changes in 

facilities are necessary, such changes shall be made within three years of the effective date of 

this part and as expeditiously as possible. 

(g) Transition plan. In the event that structural changes to facilities are necessary to meet the 

requirement of paragraph (a) of this section, a recipient shall develop, within one year of the 

effective date of this part, a transition plan setting forth the steps necessary to complete such 

changes. The plan shall be developed with the assistance of interested persons, including 

handicapped persons or organizations representing handicapped persons. A copy of the 

transition plan shall be made available for public inspection. The plan shall, at a minimum: (1) 

Identify physical obstacles in the recipient's facilities that limit the accessibility of its program or 

activity to handicapped persons; (2) Describe in detail the methods that will be used to make 

the facilities accessible; (3) Specify the schedule for taking the steps necessary to achieve full 

program accessibility and if the time period of the transition plan is longer than one year, 

identify steps that will be taken during each year of the transition period; and (4) Identify the 

person responsible for implementation of the plan. 

 

 

Sec. 15b.19 New construction. 

 

(a) Design and construction. Each facility or part of a facility constructed by, on behalf of, or for 

the use of a recipient shall be designed and constructed in such manner that the facility or part 
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of the facility is readily accessible to and usable by handicapped persons, if the construction is 

commenced after the effective date of this part. 

(b) Alteration. Each facility or part of a facility which is altered by, on behalf of, or for the use of 

a recipient after the effective date of this part in a manner that affects or could affect the 

usability of the facility or part of the facility shall to the maximum extent feasible, be altered in 

such manner that the altered portion of the facility is readily accessible to and usable by 

handicapped persons. 

(c) Conformance with Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards. (1) Effective as of January 18, 

1991, design, construction, or alteration of buildings in conformance with sections 3-8 of the 

Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (USAF) (appendix A to 41 CFR subpart 101-19.6) shall be 

deemed to comply with the requirements of this section with respect to those buildings. 

Departures from particular technical and scoping requirements of UFAS by the use of other 

methods are permitted where substantially equivalent or greater access to and usability of the 

building is provided. (2) For purposes of this section, section 4.1.6(1)(g) of UFAS shall be 

interpreted to exempt from the requirements of UFAS only mechanical rooms and other spaces 

that, because of their intended use, will not require accessibility to the public or beneficiaries or 

result in the employment or residence therein of persons with physical handicaps. (3) This 

section does not require recipients to make building alterations that have little likelihood of 

being accomplished without removing or altering a load-bearing structural member. 

(d) Compliance with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968. Nothing in this section of Sec. 15b.18 

relieves recipients, whose facilities are covered by the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as 

amended (42 U.S.C. 4151-4157) from their responsibility of complying with the requirements of 

that Act and any implementing regulations. 

 

[47 FR 25470, June 11, 1982, as amended at 55 FR 52138, 52139, Dec. 19, 1990] 

 

 

Sec. 15b.8 Remedial action, voluntary action, and self-evaluation. 

 

(a) Remedial action. (1) If the Secretary finds that a recipient has discriminated against 

persons on the basis of handicap in violation of section 504 or this part, the recipient shall take 

such remedial action is found to have discriminated against persons on the basis of handicap 
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in violation of section 504 or this part and where another recipient exercises control over the 

recipient that has discriminated, the Secretary, where appropriate, may require either or both 

recipients to take remedial action. (3) The Secretary may, where necessary to overcome the 

effects of discrimination in violation of section 504 or this part, require a recipient to take 

remedial action (i) with respect to handicapped persons who are no longer participants in the 

recipient's program but who were participants in the program when such discrimination 

occurred handicapped persons presently in the program, but not receiving full benefits or 

equal and integrated treatment within the program. 

 (b) Voluntary action. A recipient may take steps, in addition to any action that is required by 

this part, to overcome the effects of conditions that resulted in limited participation in the 

recipient's program or activity by qualified handicapped persons. 

(c) Self-evaluation. (1) A recipient shall, within one year of the effective date of this part: (i) 

Evaluate, with the assistance of interested persons, including handicapped persons or 

organizations representing handicapped persons, its current policies and practices and the 

effects thereof that do not or may not meet the requirements of this part. (ii) Modify, after 

consultation with interested persons, including handicapped persons or organizations 

representing handicapped persons, any policies and practices that do not meet the 

requirements of this part; and (iii) Take, after consultation with interested persons, including 

handicapped persons or organizations representing handicapped persons, appropriate 

remedial steps to eliminate the effects of any discrimination that resulted from adherence to 

these policies and practices. (2) A recipient shall, for at least three years following completion 

of the evaluation required under paragraph (c)(1) of this section, maintain on file, make 

available for public inspection, and provide to the Secretary upon request: (i) A list of the 

interested persons consulted, (ii) a description of areas examined and any problems identified, 

and (iii) a description of any modifications made and of any remedial steps taken. 

 

 

USDA Section 504 Regulations7 C.F.R. §§ 15b.1 - 15b.42 

Part 15b -- NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF HANDICAP IN 

PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES RECEIVING FEDERAL FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE 

 



 SAC’s Comments to Plumas NF Public Motorized Travel Management DEIS  
 

EXHIBIT 2 
 
 

Sierra Access Coalition 3/15/09  Exhibit 2 11 
 

 

Sec. 15b.4 Discrimination prohibited. 

 

(a) General. No qualified handicapped person shall, on the basis of handicap, be excluded from 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under 

any program or activity receiving assistance from this Department. 

 (b) Discriminatory actions prohibited. (1) A recipient, in providing any aid, benefit or service, 

may not, directly or through contractual, licensing, or other arrangements, on the basis of 

handicap: (i) Deny a qualified handicapped person the opportunity to participate in or benefit 

from the aid, benefit or services; (ii) Afford a qualified handicapped person an opportunity to 

participate in or benefit from the aid, benefit or services that is not equal to that afforded 

others; (iii) Provide a qualified handicapped person with an aid, benefit or service that is not 

as effective in affording equal opportunity to obtain the same result, to gain the same benefit 

or to reach the same level of achievement in the most integrated setting appropriate as that 

provided to others; (iv) Provide a different or separate aid, benefit or service to handicapped 

persons or to any class of handicapped persons unless such action is necessary to provide 

qualified handicapped persons with an aid, benefit or service that are as effective as those 

provided to others; (v) Aid or perpetuate discrimination against a qualified handicapped 

person by providing significant assistance to an agency, organization, or person that 

discriminates on the basis of handicap in providing any aid, benefit or service to beneficiaries 

of the recipient's program; (vi) Deny a qualified handicapped person the opportunity to 

participate as a member of planning or advisory boards; or (vii) Otherwise limit a qualified 

handicapped person in the enjoyment of any rights, privilege, advantage, or opportunity 

enjoyed by others receiving an aid, benefit or service. (2) For purposes of this part, aids, 

benefits and services, to be equally effective, are not required to produce the identical result 

or level of achievement for handicapped and non-handicapped persons, but must afford 

handicapped persons equal opportunity to obtain the same result, to gain the same benefit, or 

to reach the same level of achievement, in the most integrated setting appropriate to the 

person's needs. (3) Despite the existence of separate or different programs or activities 

provided in accordance with this part, a recipient may not deny a qualified handicapped 

person the opportunity to participate in such programs or activities that are not separate or 

different. (4) A recipient may not, directly or through contractual or other arrangements, utilize 

criteria or methods of administration (i) that have the effect of subjecting qualified handicapped 

persons to discrimination on the basis of handicap, (ii) that have the purpose or effect of 

defeating or substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the recipient's program 

with respect to handicapped persons, or (iii) that perpetuate the discrimination of another 

recipient if both recipients are subject to common administrative control or are agencies of the 
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same State. (5) In determining the site or location of a facility, an applicant for assistance or a 

recipient may not make selections (i) that have the effect of excluding handicapped persons, 

from denying them the benefits of, or otherwise subjecting them to discrimination under any 

program or activity that receives or benefits from Federal financial assistance or (ii) that have 

the purpose or effect of defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the 

objectives of the program or activity with respect to handicapped persons. (6) As used in this 

section, an aid, benefit or service provided under a program or activity receiving or benefiting 

from Federal financial assistance includes any aid, benefit or service provided in or through a 

facility that has been constructed, expanded, altered, leased or rented, or otherwise acquired, in 

whole or in part, with Federal financial assistance.  

 

 

 

Rehabilitation Act  

The Rehabilitation Act prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in programs 

conducted by Federal agencies, in programs receiving Federal financial assistance, in 

Federal employment, and in the employment practices of Federal contractors. The 

standards for determining employment discrimination under the Rehabilitation Act are 

the same as those used in title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

Subpart G--Procedures 

 

15b.42 Procedures. 

 

Appendix A to Part 15b--List of USDA-Assisted Programs 

 

Authority: 29 U.S.C. 794. 

 

Source: 47 FR 25470, June 11, 1982, unless otherwise noted. 



 SAC’s Comments to Plumas NF Public Motorized Travel Management DEIS  
 

EXHIBIT 2 
 
 

Sierra Access Coalition 3/15/09  Exhibit 2 13 
 

 

 

Subpart A--General Provisions 

 

Sec. 15b.1 Purpose. 

 

The purpose of this part is to implement section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 

amended, to the end that no otherwise qualified handicapped individual in the United States 

shall solely by reason of his or her handicap be excluded from the participation in, be denied 

the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving 

Federal financial assistance. 

 

Sec. 15b.2 Applicability. 

 

This part applies to all programs and activities that receive Federal financial assistance 

extended by the Department of Agriculture after the effective date of this part whether or not 

the assistance was approved after the effective date. Subparts A, B, and C are of general 

applicability. Subparts D, E, and F are tailored to specific programs. Subpart G is procedural. 

 

[47 FR 25470, June 11, 1982, as amended at 55 FR 52139, Dec. 19, 1990] 

 

Sec. 15b.3 Definitions. 

 

 As used in this part, the term or phrase: 

 (a) The Act means the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-112, 87 Stat. 390 (1973), as 

amended by the Rehabilitation Act Amendments of 1974, Public Law 93-651, 89 Stat. 2 (1974) 

and Public Law 93-516, 88 Stat. 1617 (1974) and the Rehabilitation, Comprehensive Services 

and  Developmental Disabilities Amendments of 1978, Public Law 95-602, 92 Stat. 2955 (1978). 

The Act appears at 29 U.S.C. 701-794. 
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(b) Section 504 means section 504 of the Act, 29 U.S.C. 794. 

(c) Education of the Handicapped Act means the Education of the Handicapped Act, Public Law 

92-230, Title VI, 84 Stat. 175 (1970), as amended by the Education of the Handicapped 

Amendments of 1974, Public Law 93-380, Title VI, 88 Stat. 576 (1974), the Education for All 

Handicapped Children Act of 1975, Public Law 94-142, 89 Stat. 773  (1975), and the Education of 

the Handicapped Amendments of 1977, Public  Law 95-49, 91 Stat. 230 (1977). The Education of 

the Handicapped Act appears at 20 U.S.C. 1401-1461. 

(d) Department means the Department of Agriculture and includes each of its operating 

agencies and other organizational units. 

(e) Secretary means the Secretary of Agriculture or any officer or employee of the Department 

to whom the Secretary has delegated or may delegate the authority to act under the 

regulations of this part.  

(f) Recipient means any State or its political subdivision, any instrumentality of a State or its 

political subdivision, any public or private agency, institution, organization, or other entity, or 

any person to which Federal financial assistance is extended directly or through another 

recipient, including any successor, assignee, or transferee of a recipient, but excluding the 

ultimate beneficiary of the  assistance. 

(g) Federal financial assistance or assistance means any grant, contract (other than a 

procurement contract or a contract of insurance or guaranty), cooperative agreement, formula 

allocation, loan, or any other arrangement by which the Department provides or otherwise 

makes available assistance in the form of: (1) Funds;  

(2) Services of Federal personnel; (3) Real and personal Federal property or any interest in 

Federal property, including: (i) A sale, transfer, lease or use (on other than a casual or transient 

basis) of Federal property for less than fair market value, for reduced consideration or in 

recognition of the public nature of the recipient's program or activity; and (ii) Proceeds from a 

subsequent sale, transfer or lease of Federal property if the Federal share of its fair market value 

is not returned to the Federal Government. (4) Any other thing of value. 

(h) Facility means all or any portion of buildings, structures, equipment, roads, walks, parking 

lots, or other real or personal property or interest in such property. 

(i) Handicapped person means any person who has a physical or mental impairment which 

substantially limits one or more major life activities, has a record of such an impairment, or is 

regarded as having such an impairment.  

(j) Physical or mental impairment means (1) any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic 

disfigurement, or anatomical loss affecting one or more of the following body systems: 
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Neurological; musculoskeletal; special sense organs; respiratory, including speech organs; 

cardiovascular; reproductive; digestive; genitourinary; hemic and lymphatic; skin; and 

endocrine; or (2) any mental or psychological disorder, such as mental retardation, organic brain 

syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. The term physical or 

mental impairment includes, but is not limited to, such diseases and conditions as orthopedic, 

visual, speech, and hearing impairments; cerebral palsy; epilepsy; muscular dystrophy; multiple 

sclerosis, cancer; heart disease; diabetes; mental retardation; emotional illness; and drug 

addiction and alcoholism.  

(k) Major life activities means functions such as caring for one's self, performing manual tasks, 

walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning and working.  

(l) Has a record of such an impairment means has a history of, or has been misclassified as 

having, a mental or physical impairment that substantially limits one or more major life 

activities.  

(m) Is regarded as having an impairment means (1) has a physical or mental impairment that 

does not substantially limit major life activities but that is treated by a recipient as 

constituting such a limitation; (2) has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits 

major life activities only as a result of the attitudes of others towards such impairments, or (3) 

has none of the impairments defined in paragraph (j) of this section but is treated by a recipient 

as having such an impairment.  

(n) Qualified handicapped person (used synonymously with otherwise qualified handicapped 

individual) means: (1) With respect to employment, a handicapped person who, with reasonable 

accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the job in question, but the term does 

not include any individual who is an alcoholic or drug abuser whose current use of alcohol or 

drugs prevents such individual from performing the duties of the job in question or whose 

employment, by reason of such current alcohol or drug abuse, would constitute a direct threat 

to property or the safety of others; (2) With respect to public preschool, elementary, secondary, 

or adult educational services, a handicapped person, (i) of an age during which non-

handicapped persons are provided such services, (ii) of an age during which it is mandatory 

under State law to provide such services to handicapped persons, or (iii) to whom a State is 

required to provide a free appropriate public education under section 612 of the Education of 

the Handicapped Act; and (3) With respect to postsecondary and vocational education services, 

a handicapped person who meets all academic and technical standards requisite to admission or 

participation in the recipient's education program or activity; (4) With respect to other services, 

a handicapped person who meets the essential eligibility requirements for the receipt of such 

services.  

(o) Handicap means any condition or characteristic that renders a person a handicapped 

person as defined in paragraph (i) of this section. 



 SAC’s Comments to Plumas NF Public Motorized Travel Management DEIS  
 

EXHIBIT 2 
 
 

Sierra Access Coalition 3/15/09  Exhibit 2 16 
 

(p) For purposes of Sec. 15b.18(d), Historic preservation programs means programs receiving 

Federal financial assistance that has preservation of historic properties as a primary purpose.    

(q) For purposes of Sec. 15b.18(e), Historic properties means those buildings or facilities that are 

eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places, or such properties designated as 

historic under a statute of the appropriate State or local government body.   

(r) For purposes of Sec. 15b.18(d), Substantial impairment means a significant loss of the 

integrity of finished materials, design quality or special character which loss results from a 

permanent alteration. 

 

[47 FR 25470, June 11, 1982, as amended at 55 FR 52139, Dec. 19, 1990] 

 

Sec. 15b.4 Discrimination prohibited. 

 

(a) General. No qualified handicapped person shall, on the basis of handicap, be excluded from 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under 

any program or activity receiving assistance from this Department. 

 (b) Discriminatory actions prohibited. (1) A recipient, in providing any aid, benefit or service, 

may not, directly or through contractual, licensing, or other arrangements, on the basis of 

handicap: (i) Deny a qualified handicapped person the opportunity to participate in or benefit 

from the aid, benefit or services; (ii) Afford a qualified handicapped person an opportunity to 

participate in or benefit from the aid, benefit or services that is not equal to that afforded 

others; (iii) Provide a qualified handicapped person with an aid, benefit or service that is not 

as effective in affording equal opportunity to obtain the same result, to gain the same benefit 

or to reach the same level of achievement in the most integrated setting appropriate as that 

provided to others; (iv) Provide a different or separate aid, benefit or service to handicapped 

persons or to any class of handicapped persons unless such action is necessary to provide 

qualified handicapped persons with an aid, benefit or service that are as effective as those 

provided to others; (v) Aid or perpetuate discrimination against a qualified handicapped 

person by providing significant assistance to an agency, organization, or person that 

discriminates on the basis of handicap in providing any aid, benefit or service to beneficiaries 

of the recipient's program; (vi) Deny a qualified handicapped person the opportunity to 

participate as a member of planning or advisory boards; or (vii) Otherwise limit a qualified 

handicapped person in the enjoyment of any rights, privilege, advantage, or opportunity 

enjoyed by others receiving an aid, benefit or service. (2) For purposes of this part, aids, 
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benefits and services, to be equally effective, are not required to produce the identical result 

or level of achievement for handicapped and non-handicapped persons, but must afford 

handicapped persons equal opportunity to obtain the same result, to gain the same benefit, 

or to reach the same level of achievement, in the most integrated setting appropriate to the 

person's needs. (3) Despite the existence of separate or different programs or activities 

provided in accordance with this part, a recipient may not deny a qualified handicapped 

person the opportunity to participate in such programs or activities that are not separate or 

different. (4) A recipient may not, directly or through contractual or other arrangements, 

utilize criteria or methods of administration (i) that have the effect of subjecting qualified 

handicapped persons to discrimination on the basis of handicap, (ii) that have the purpose or 

effect of defeating or substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the 

recipient's program with respect to handicapped persons, or (iii) that perpetuate the 

discrimination of another recipient if both recipients are subject to common administrative 

control or are agencies of the same State. (5) In determining the site or location of a facility, 

an applicant for assistance or a recipient may not make selections (i) that have the effect of 

excluding handicapped persons, from denying them the benefits of, or otherwise subjecting 

them to discrimination under any program or activity that receives or benefits from Federal 

financial assistance or (ii) that have the purpose or effect of defeating or substantially 

impairing the accomplishment of the objectives of the program or activity with respect to 

handicapped persons. (6) As used in this section, an aid, benefit or service provided under a 

program or activity receiving or benefiting from Federal financial assistance includes any aid, 

benefit or service provided in or through a facility that has been constructed, expanded, 

altered, leased or rented, or otherwise acquired, in whole or in part, with Federal financial 

assistance.  

(c) Programs limited by Federal law. The exclusion of non-handicapped persons from the 

benefits of a program limited by Federal statute or executive order to handicapped persons or 

the exclusion of a specific class of handicapped persons from a program limited by Federal 

statute or executive order to a different class of handicapped persons is not prohibited by this 

part.  

(d) Communications. Recipients shall take appropriate steps to ensure that communications 

with their applicants, employees, and beneficiaries are available to persons with impaired 

vision and hearing. 

 

Sec. 15b.5 Assurances required. 
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(a) Assurances. An applicant for Federal financial assistance for a program or activity to which 

this part applies shall submit an assurance, on a form specified by the Secretary, that the 

program will be operated in compliance with this part. An applicant may incorporate these 

assurances by reference in subsequent applications to the Department. 

(b) Duration of obligation. (1) In the case of Federal financial assistance extended in the form of 

real property or to provide real property or structures on the property, the assurance will 

obligate the recipient, or, in the case of a subsequent transfer, the transferee, for the period 

during which the real property or structures are used for the purpose for which Federal financial 

assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or 

benefits. (2) In the case of Federal financial assistance extended to provide personal property, 

the assurance will obligate the recipient for the period during which it retains ownership or 

possession of the property. (3) In all other cases, the assurance will obligate the recipient for the 

period during which Federal financial assistance is extended. 

(c) Covenants.  

(1) Where Federal financial assistance is provided in the form of real property or interest in the 

property from the Department, the instrument effecting or recording this transfer shall contain 

a covenant running with the land to assure nondiscrimination for the period during which the 

real property is used for the purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended or for 

another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits. 

(2) Where no transfer of property is involved but property is purchased or improved with 

Federal financial assistance, the recipient shall agree to include the covenant described in 

paragraph (c)(1) of this section in the instrument effecting or recording any subsequent transfer 

of the property. 

(3) Where Federal financial assistance is provided in the form of real property or interest in the 

property from the Department, the covenant shall also include a condition coupled with a right 

to be reserved by the Department to revert title to the property in the event of a breach of the 

covenant. If a transferee of real property proposes to mortgage or otherwise encumber the real 

property as security for financing construction of new, or improvement of existing, facilities on 

the property for the purposes for which the property was transferred, the Secretary may, upon 

request of the transferee and if necessary to accomplish such financing and upon such 

conditions as the Secretary deems appropriate, agree to forebear the exercise of such right to 

revert title for so long as the lien of such mortgage or other encumbrance remains effective. 
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Sec. 15b.6 Designation of responsible employee and adoption of grievance procedures. 

 

(a) Designation of responsible employee. A recipient that employs fifteen or more persons shall 

designate at least one person to coordinate its efforts to comply with this part. 

(b) Adoption of grievance procedures. A recipient that employs fifteen or more persons shall 

adopt grievance procedures that incorporate appropriate due process standards and that 

provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any action prohibited by 

this part. Such procedures need not be established with respect to complaints from applicants 

for employment or from applicants for admission to postsecondary educational institutions. 

(c) The Secretary may require any recipient with fewer than fifteen employees to designate a 

responsible employee and adopt grievance procedures when the Secretary finds a violation of 

this part or finds that complying with these administrative requirements will not significantly 

impair the ability of the recipient to provide benefits or services. 

 

Sec. 15b.7 Notice of nondiscrimination and accessible services. 

 

(a) A recipient shall take appropriate initial and continuing steps to notify participants, 

beneficiaries, applicants, and employees, including those with impaired vision or hearing, and 

unions or professional organizations holding collective bargaining or professional agreements 

with the recipient that it does not discriminate on the basis of handicap in violation of section 

504 and this part. The notification shall state, where appropriate, that the recipient does not 

discriminate in admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs and 

activities. The recipient shall also identify the responsible employee designated pursuant to Sec. 

15b.6(a), and identify the existence and location of accessible services, activities, and facilities. A 

recipient shall make the initial notification required by this paragraph within 90 days of the 

effective date of this part. Methods of initial and continuing notification may include but are not 

limited to the posting of notices, placement of notices in the recipient's publications, radio 

announcements, and the use of other visual and aural media. 

(b) If a recipient publishes or uses recruitment materials or publications containing general 

information that it makes available to participants, beneficiaries, applicants or employees, it 

shall include in those materials or publications a statement of the policy described in paragraph 

(a) of this section. A recipient may meet the requirement of this paragraph either by including 
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appropriate inserts in existing materials and publications or by revising and reprinting the 

materials and publications. 

 

Sec. 15b.8 Remedial action, voluntary action, and self-evaluation. 

 

(a) Remedial action. (1) If the Secretary finds that a recipient has discriminated against 

persons on the basis of handicap in violation of section 504 or this part, the recipient shall take 

such remedial action  is found to have discriminated against persons on the basis of handicap 

in violation of section 504 or this part and where another recipient exercises control over the 

recipient that has discriminated, the Secretary, where appropriate, may require either or both 

recipients to take remedial action. (3) The Secretary may, where necessary to overcome the 

effects of discrimination in violation of section 504 or this part, require a recipient to take 

remedial action (i) with respect to handicapped persons who are no longer participants in the 

recipient's program but who were participants in the program when such discrimination 

occurred handicapped persons presently in the program, but not receiving full benefits or 

equal and integrated treatment within the program. 

 (b) Voluntary action. A recipient may take steps, in addition to any action that is required by 

this part, to overcome the effects of conditions that resulted in limited participation in the 

recipient's program or activity by qualified handicapped persons. 

(c) Self-evaluation. (1) A recipient shall, within one year of the effective date of this part: (i) 

Evaluate, with the assistance of interested persons, including handicapped persons or 

organizations representing handicapped persons, its current policies and practices and the 

effects thereof that do not or may not meet the requirements of this part. (ii) Modify, after 

consultation with interested persons, including handicapped persons or organizations 

representing handicapped persons, any policies and practices that do not meet the 

requirements of this part; and (iii) Take, after consultation with interested persons, including 

handicapped persons or organizations representing handicapped persons, appropriate 

remedial steps to eliminate the effects of any discrimination that resulted from adherence to 

these policies and  practices. (2) A recipient shall, for at least three years following completion 

of the evaluation required under paragraph (c)(1) of this section, maintain on file, make 

available for public inspection, and provide to the Secretary upon request: (i) A list of the 

interested persons consulted, (ii) a description of areas examined and any problems identified, 

and (iii) a description of any modifications made and of any remedial steps taken. 
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Sec. 15b.9 Effect of State or local law or other requirements, and effect of employment 

opportunities. 

 

(a) The obligation to comply with this part is not obviated or alleviated by the existence of any 

State or local law or other requirement that, on the basis of handicap, imposes prohibitions or 

limits upon the eligibility of qualified handicapped persons to receive services or to practice 

any occupation or profession. 

(b) The obligation to comply with this part is not obviated or alleviated because employment 

opportunities in any occupation or profession are or may be more limited for handicapped 

persons than for nonhandicapped persons. 

 

 

Sec. 15b.10 Effect of compliance with regulations of other Federal agencies. 

 

A recipient that has designated a responsible official and establish a grievance procedure, 

provided notice, completed a self-evaluation, or prepared a transition plan in the course of 

complying with regulations issued by other Federal agencies under section 504 will be in 

compliance with Sec. 15b.6, Sec. 15b.7, Sec. 15b.8(c), or Sec. 15b.18(f), respectively, if all 

requirements of those sections have been met in regard to programs assisted by this 

Department. 

 

 Subpart B--Employment Practices 

 

 Sec. 15b.11 Applicability. 

 

This subpart applies to all programs and activities that receive Federal financial assistance 

provided by the Department of Agriculture after the effective date of this part. 

 

[47 FR 25470, June 11, 1982, as amended at 55 FR 52139, Dec. 19, 1990] 
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Sec. 15b.12 Discrimination prohibited. 

 

(a) General. (1) No qualified handicapped person shall, on the basis of handicapped, be 

subjected to discrimination in employment under any program or activity receiving assistance 

from this Department. (2) A recipient shall make all decisions concerning employment in a 

manner which ensures that discrimination on the basis of handicap does not occur and may not 

limit, segregate, or classify applicants or employees in any way that adversely affects their 

opportunities or status because of handicap. (3) A recipient may not participate in a contractural 

or other relationship that has the effect of subjecting qualified handicapped applicants or 

employees to discrimination prohibited by this subpart. This includes relationships with 

employment and referral agencies, with labor unions with organizations providing or 

administering fringe benefits to employees of the recipient, and with organizations providing 

training and apprenticeship programs. (4) All provisions of this subpart pertaining to 

employment, apply equally to volunteer service. 

(b) Specific activities. The provisions of this subpart apply to: (1) Recruitment, advertising, and 

the processing of applications for employment; (2) Hiring, upgrading, promotion, award of 

tenure, demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, right to return from layoff, and rehiring; (3) 

Rates of pay or any other form of compensation and changes in compensation; (4) Job 

assignments, job classifications, organizational structures, position descriptions, lines of 

progression, and seniority lists; (5) Leaves of absence, sick leave, or any other leave; (6) Fringe 

benefits available by virtue of employment, whether or not administered by the recipient; (7) 

Selection and financial support for training, including apprenticeship, professional meetings, 

conferences, and other related activities, and selection for leaves of absence to pursue training; 

(8) Employer sponsored activities, including social or recreational programs; and (9) Any other 

term, condition, or privilege of employment. 

(c) A recipient's obligation to comply with this subpart is not affected by any inconsistent term 

of any collective bargaining agreement to which it is a party. 

 

Sec. 15b.13 Reasonable accommodation. 

 

(a) A recipient shall make reasonable accommodation to the known physical or mental 

limitations of an otherwise qualified handicapped applicant or employee unless the recipient 
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can demonstrate that the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the operation of 

its program. 

(b) Reasonable accommodation may include (1) Making facilities used by employees readily 

accessible to and useable by handicapped persons, and (2) Job restructuring, part-time or 

modified work schedules, acquisition or modification of equipment or devices, the provisions of 

readers or interpreters, and other similar actions. 

(c) In determining pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section whether an accommodation would 

impose an undue hardship on the operation of a recipient's programs, factors to be considered 

include: (1) The overall size of the recipient's program with respect to number of employees, 

number and type of facilities, and size of budget; (2) The type of the recipient's operation, 

including the composition and structure of recipient's workforce; (3) The nature and cost of the 

accommodation needed. 

(d) A recipient may not deny any employment opportunity to a qualified handicapped employee 

or applicant if the basis for the denial is the need to make reasonable accommodation to the 

physical or mental limitations of the employee or applicant. 
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7 CFR 15e -  Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in programs or 

activities conducted by the USDA  

 

The following statements are designed to summarize each of the sections of the 

proposed rules as they wer e presented in the Federal Register on 10 - 25- 91. This is 

not intended to provide the complete, detailed information about each section of 7 

CFR 15e as that published in the Federal Register.  

 

15e 101.  Purpose -  To effectuate a change to the 1978 Rehabilita tion, Comprehensive 

Services and Developmental Disabilities Act, amending section 504 the 1973 

Rehabilitation Act by prohibiting discrimination on the basis of handicap, in any 

program or activity conducted by the USDA.  

  

15e 102.  Application -  These rules  will apply to all agency programs and activities, 

except those conducted outside of the US, that do not involve   individuals with 

disabilities.  

  

15e 103.  Definitions -  

  

Assistant Attorney General means for the Civil Rights Division, US Dept. of Justice .  

 

Auxiliary aids refers to a variety of services and devices which may help people 

with disabilities to better participate in the programs and activities that an 

agency conducts.  These aids include, but are not limited to, Brailled materials, 

audio recor dings and use of readers for people with visual impairments.  Aids for 

people with hearing impairments include telephone handset amplifiers, telephones   

compatible with hearing aids, telecommmunication devices (TDD's), interpreters, 

notetakers, written ma terials and other similar services and devices.  

 

Complete complaint means a written statement containing the complainant's name and 

address and describing the nature of the agency's alleged discriminatory action, 

including the time and date of the Section 504 violation.  Complaints filed on 

behalf of others should identify, by name if possible, any alleged victims of 

discrimination.  

 

Facility means all real and personal property of the agency, including structures, 

roads, vehicles, etc.  

 

Historic preservati on programs means all agency programs with a primary purpose of 

preserving historic properties.  

 

Historic properties are those listed or eligible for listing in the National 

Register of Historic Places or properties designated as historic under a statute o f 

the appropriate State or local government body.  

 

Individuals with handicaps means any person who has or has a record of having, a 

physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life 

activities, or is regarded as having an impai rment.  

 

1)  Physical or mental impairment:  Many physical and psychological disorders or 

conditions exist as qualifying in this section. See the complete document for a list 

of these.  
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2)  Major life activities include self care functions, performing manu al tasks, 

walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning, and working.  

 

 

3)  Having a record of such an impairment, whether by history or by mis -

classification.  

 

4)  Is regarded as having an impairment means that the individual may or may not 

have  a qualifying impairment, but is treated by the agency or the attitudes of 

others as having such an impairment.  

Qualified individual with handicaps means that persons eligible for education 

services from an agency; someone who meets requirements and can pe rform program 

function or activity without modification which fundamentally alters the nature of 

the program; disabled person who meets eligibility requirements for another program.   

 

Qualified handicapped person is defined, for purposes of employment, in  29 CFR 

1613.702(f).  

 

 

Section 504 refers to Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, with all 

accompanying amendments, as stated in the primary document.   

 

 

In this regulation, section 504 applies only to programs or activities conducted by 

the USD A, not to federally assisted programs.  

 

 

Substantial impairment means a significant loss of the integrity of finished 

materials, design quality or special character resulting from a permanent  

alteration.  

 

 

15e Sec 104 -  15e Sec 109 (Reserved)  

 

 

15e Sec 110  -  Self Evaluation is required within one year after the final rules are 

adopted, evaluating any changes needed to policies in order to meet new regulation 

requirements. The agency to provide an opportunity for disabled organizations and 

individuals to par ticipate in evaluation, orally and in writing. The agency to make 

a written record of evaluation available to public for three years; include 

description of areas and problems identified and modifications made.  

 

 

15e Sec 111 -  Notice to be given by the age ncy (after adoption) to all interested 

persons; information regarding these provisions; will    conspicuously post notice 

of the protections afforded by this regulation and section 504.  

 

 

15e Sec 112 -  15e Sec 129 (Reserved)             

 

 

15e Sec 130 -  General prohibitions against discrimination -  No qualified disabled 

individual shall be excluded from, or denied benefits of any agency program.   

 



 SAC’s Comments to Plumas NF Public Motorized Travel Management DEIS  
 

EXHIBIT 2 
 
 

Sierra Access Coalition 3/15/09  Exhibit 2 26 
 

 

The agency will NOT directly or indirectly discriminate in any of the following 

manners:  

 

 

Deny any program be nefits to qualified disabled persons.  

 

 

Provide programs/services not equal to those provided to non - disabled.  

 

Provide programs to qualified disabled persons that are less effective at providing 

equal program achievement opportunities.  

 

 

Provide different  or separate programs/services unless needed to reach comparable 

quality.  

 

 

Deny qualified disabled individuals a chance to serve on planning or advisory 

boards.  

 

 

Limit disabled individuals from enjoying all program advantages provided to all 

others.  

 

 

The agency cannot force disabled individuals to utilize separate programs/activities 

if they choose not to.  

 

 

The agency cannot directly or indirectly (through contract), use administration 

criteria/methods which would adversely affect qualified individuals based on their 

disability.  

 

 

Defeat or substantially impair program/activity accomplishment objectives for people 

with disabilities.  

 

 

The agency cannot make site/facility selections which would defeat or substantially 

impair program/activity accomplishmen t objectives or otherwise exclude disabled 

individuals from programs or activities.  

 

 

The agency may not use discriminatory criteria against people with disabilities in 

the selection of procurement contractors.  

 

 

The agency cannot administer licensing/cert ification programs or establish program 

requirements which discriminate against qualified people with disabilities.  

 

 

The agency CAN exclude non - disabled individuals from programs designed by Executive 

Order or Federal statute to serve only those with disa bilities.  
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The agency SHALL administer all programs for people with disabilities in the most 

integrated setting appropriate to meet the needs of the participants.  

 

 

15e Sec 131 -  15e Sec 139 (Reserved)  

 

15e Sec 140 -  Employment -  The agency cannot subject  qualified disabled individuals 

to employment discrimination in ANY program/activity under the authority of Section 

501 of the Rehab. Act of 1973; as established by EEOC (29CFR Part 1613).  

 

 

15e Sec 141 -  15e Sec 148 (Reserved)  

 

 

15e Sec 149 -  Program acce ssibility: Discrimination Prohibited -  No qualified 

persons with disabilities will discriminated against or denied program/activity 

access because the agency's facilities are inaccessible to them.  

 

 

15e Sec 150 -  Program Accessibility: Existing facilities -  Agency programs, viewed 

in their entirety, shall be readily accessible to and useable to people with 

disabilities.  This does NOT:  

 

 

Necessarily require that all existing facilities be accessible to people with 

disabilities.  

 

 

Require agency action resul ting in substantial impairment of significant historic 

property features.  

 

 

Require the agency to fundamentally alter a program/activity or to incur undue 

financial/administrative burdens.  If an agency determines such a burden would be 

incurred they must take other action to ensure that people with disabilities benefit 

from the program/activity as much as possible.  

 

 

15e Sec 150 -  Program accessibility: Existing facilities -  All agency 

programs/activities, viewed in their entirety, will be accessible to an d useable by 

people with disabilities.  However, this does NOT -  

 

Require all existing facilities to be accessible and useable.  

 

 

Require actions substantially impairing historic property features.  

 

 

Require the agency to alter programs/activities that woul d incur undue 

financial/administrative burdens.  However the agency does bear the responsibility 

to prove, in writing, this hardship and provide alternative methods allowing people 

with disabilities to access the program/activities.  
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Methods of providing the required program access may include redesigning equipment; 

changing programs/activities to more accessible structures; building new, accessible 

structures or remodeling existing ones, or any other method providing useable and 

accessible programs/activi ties for people with disabilities.  

 

 

The agency is NOT required to make structural changes if another way is found, 

however, they must give priority to providing the program/activity in the most 

integrated setting appropriate.  

 

 

Physical access to histori c preservation projects must be given priority, however, 

necessary alternatives may include the following:  

 

 

Audio/visual depictions of inaccessible portions of programs/activities.  

 

 

Assigning guides through inaccessible areas.  

 

 

Adopt innovative methods,  as needed.  

 

 

AGENCY COMPLIANCE WITH THIS SECTION MUST BEGIN WITHIN 60 DAYS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE 

OF THE FINAL REGULATION.  

 

 

Structural changes required under this section MUST occur within 3 years of final 

document date, but as soon as possible.  

 

 

The age ncy must develop, within six months of the adoption of the final regulation, 

a transition plan documenting needed program access changes.  They must also provide 

opportunity for disabled individuals and organizations to participate in the plan 

(orally and in writing).  The plan must be made available to the public and, at a 

minimum, must include the following:  

 

Identify accessibility obstacles in agency facilities.  

 

 

Describe details of planned facility changes.  

 

 

Specify timeframes needed to comply with th is regulation; identify steps needed each 

year if transition plan is longer than one year.  

 

 

 

Identify responsible plan implementation official.  
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15e Sec 151 Program Accessibility; New construction and alternations.  

 

 

All agency buildings, or parts of bui ldings, must be readily accessible and useable 

by persons with disabilities.  

 

 

15e Sec 152 -  Sec 159 (Reserved)  

 

 

15e Sec 160 -  Communications -  

 

 

* The agency must take steps to ensure effective communication with all other govt. 

agencies and members of th e public.  

 

 

* The agency shall furnish appropriate auxiliary aids to ensure program/activity 

participation by people with disabilities.  

 

 

* The agency will use the request of disabled individuals in determining needed 

auxiliary aids needed.  

 

 

The agency ne ed NOT provide devices or services for personal use or study.  

 

 

Telecommunication devices for deaf persons (TDD's) will be provided by the agency 

when telephone services are used with program applicants and beneficiaries.  

 

The agency shall sign inaccessibl e structures, notifying interested persons,  

including those with sight or hearing disabilities, where accessible  

programs/activities are located.  International accessibility symbol to be used at 

accessible building entrances.  

 

 

Inaccessible agency facilit ies must be "signed" at the main entrance, giving 

direction to the location of information about accessible facilities.  

 

 

This agency is NOT required to make access changes that fundamentally alter 

program/activity services which result in undue financial/ administrative burdens.  

However, if such burdens are determined, the agency is still responsible to alter 

access to the program/activity allowing people with disabilities to participate to 

maximum extent possible.  

 

 

115e Sec 161 -  Sec 169  (Reserved)  

 

 

15e  Sec 170 -  Compliance procedures  
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The agency will process all complaints alleging violation of Section 504 according 

to EEOC guidelines as established.  

 

 

The agency will designate an official to coordinate compliance procedures.  

 

 

All complaints must be f iled within 180 days of alleged discrimination, unless 

extended and the agency must investigate all complaints within their jurisdiction.  

 

 

Reasonable effort must be made to refer complaints to the proper agency that are not 

within agency jurisdiction.  

 

 

The agency shall notify the Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance 

Board if they receive a complaint that a structure is not readily accessible and 

useable by people with disabilities.  

 

 

The agency must notify complaint, in writing, within 180  days, explaining results of 

the agency investigation.  This to include the following:  

 

 

Finding of fact and conclusions of law.  

 

 

Description of violation remedy.  

 

 

Notice of appeal rights.  

 

 

Appeals must be filed within 90 days of the receipt of agency f indings.  May be 

extended.  

 

 

Timely appeals accepted and processed.  

 

Agency head will notify complainant of appeal results within 60 days of appeal 

receipt.  It c ould be extended for additional 60 days if more information is needed.  

 

 

Certain timeframes can  be extended by Asst. Attorney General.  

 

 

Agency may delegate authority to investigate complaint, however final complaint determination 
authority rests with the agency. 

 

 

 


